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LICENSEE:

The inspection was an examination of the activities conducted under your license as they relate to radiation safety and to compliance with the Nuclear
Regulatory Commission (NRC) rules and regulations and the conditions of your license. The inspection consisted of selective examinations of
procedures and representative records, interviews with personnel, and observations by the inspector. The inspection findings are as follows:

P / 1. Based on the inspection findings, no violations were identified.
i

W 2. Previous violation(s) closed.

J 3. The violations(s}, specifically described to you by the inspector as non-cited violations, are not being cited because they were self-identified,
non-repetitive, and corrective action was or is being taken, and the remaining criteria in the NRC Enforcement Policy, to exercise
discretion, were satisfied.

Non-cited violation(s) were discussed invoiving the following requirement(s):

["‘1 4,  During this inspection, certain of your activities, as described below and/or attached, were in violation of NRC requiremenis and are being
~~~~~ ’ cited in accordance with NRC Enforcement Policy. This form is a NOTICE OF VIOLATION, which may be subject to posting in accordance
with 10 CFR 19.11.
{Violations and Corrective Actions)

Statement of Corrective Actions

| hereby state that, within 30 days, the actions described by me to the Inspector will be taken to correct the violations identified. This statement of
corrective actions is made in accordance with the requirements of 10 CFR 2.201 (corrective steps already taken, corrective steps which will be taken,
date when full compliance will be achieved). 1 understand that no further written response to NRC will be required, unless specifically requested.
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|| Main Office Inspection Next Inspection Date: 9/13/2014

| | Field Office Inspection

[ | Temporary Job Site Inspection

PROGRAM SCOPE

This enforcement follow-up inspection was limited to review of the effectiveness of the licensee's corrective actions
taken to prevent a similar violation of 10 CFR 35.40(a) and License Condition 12.B. involving failure to have written
directives for iodine-131 administrations signed by an authorized user. The violation was identified during the last
inspection conducted on September 13, 2012, with continued in-office review through October 15, 2012. On December
6, 2012, the violation was cited as a Severity Level 111 violation. As corrective action, the licensee: (1) committed to
ensure that written directives are signed only by authorized users who are trained and experienced, as required; (2)
revised its written directive form to contain a a nuclear medicine technologist's (NMT) signature attesting that the NMT
verified that the authorized user who signs the written directive is listed as an applicable authorized user on the NRC
license; (3) instructed the nuclear medicine staff on the new requirements for verifying that the authorized users who
sign written directives are applicably authorized on the NRC license; (4) committed to do quarterly license reviews to
identify additions and deletions of authorized users; and (5) committed to add 2 new authorized users for 10 CFR 300
to ensure adequate coverage. No 10 CFR 300 administrations occurred during the inspection.

INSPECTOR OBSERVATIONS

The inspector observed: (1) that since the last inspection, the licensee submitted license amendment requests to add 2
new authorized users for 10 CFR 300 to ensure adequate coverage; (2) an NMT demonstrate that she knew that
administrations of greater than 30 microcuries of iodine-131 required a written directive; (3) an NMT demonstrate how
she had referenced applicable information on the license to attest, in writing on the revised written directive form, that
the authorized users who signed the written directives are listed as an applicable authorized user on the NRC license;
(4) an NMT describe training she received regarding the contents of written directives and new actions taken to prevent
a similar violation; (5) training records showing that the RSO and the NMTs were instructed on the new requirements
for verifying that the authorized users who sign written directives are applicably authorized on the NRC license; (6) an
NMT demonstrate the actions taken from receipt of an order of iodine-131 greater than 30 microcuries to
administration of the material; (7) that written directives for all administrations of iodine-131 greater than 30
microcuries since the last insepection were signed by an authorized user; (8) an RSC record stating that the licensee
will do quarterly license reviews to identify added and deleted authorized users.
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